76 South Main St. Akron, Ohio 44308

NC

December 21, 2007

Betty McCauley Chief of Docketing The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio 180 East Broad Street Columbus, OH 43215

SUBJECT:

Case Nos. 07-129 EL-ATA 07-0647-EL-UNC 05-1500-EL-COI 89-6006-EL-TRF 2007 DEC 21 PM 2: 24

Dear Ms. McCauley:

In response to the Commission's Finding and Order dated March 28, 2007 in Case No. 05-1500-EL-COI, enclosed please find an original and 15 copies of the Partial Service Rider filing for Ohio Edison Company.

Please open a new ATA docket and assign a case number. Also please file one copy of this filing in Case No. 07-0647-EL-UNC, one copy in Case No. 05-1500-EL-COI, one copy in Case No. 89-6006-EL-TRF, and return two time-stamped copies (with the assigned case number) in the enclosed envelope.

Should you have any questions, please feel free to call me at 330-761-4200.

Thank you.

Sincerely,

Steven E. Ouellette

Director, Rates & Regulatory Affairs

**Enclosures** 

# BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO

ln	the ]	Matter of the Application of	)		
Oł	nio E	Edison Company for	)	Case No. 07	EL-ATA
_	_	val of Modifications	) .		
to	Exis	sting Partial Service Rider	)		
1.	APF	PLICANT RESPECTFULLY PROPOSI	ES: (Check app	plicable proposals)	
		New Service		Change in Rule or	Regulation
		New Classification		Reduction in Rate	es
		Change In Classification		Correction of Erro	or
	<u>X</u>	Other, not involving increase in rates			
		Various Related and Unrelated textual	revision, with	out change in intent	
3.	Octo Ride	7, and reflect the proposed rule changes ober 22, 2007. Also included are severa er.  RIFFS AFFECTED: (If more than 2, us	l changes that	clarify the provisions o	=
	Tari	ff Sheet No. 24			
4.	Atta	sched hereto and made a part hereof are:	(Check appli	cable Exhibits)	
	<u>X</u>	Exhibit A - existing schedule sheets (t	o be supersede	ed) if applicable	•
	<u>X</u>	Exhibit B - proposed schedule sheets			
		Exhibit C-1			
	a)	if new service is proposed, describe;			
	b)	if new equipment is involved, describe where appropriate, a statement disting			
	c)	if proposed service results from custor and type of customers requesting prop		o state, giving if availal	ble, the number

	Exhibit C-2 - if a change of classification, rule or regulation is proposed, a statement
	explaining reason for change.
X	Exhibit C-3 - statement explaining reason for any proposal not covered in Exhibits
	C-1 or C-2

5. Applicant respectfully requests the Commission to approve the tariff sheets attached hereto, and to authorize Ohio Edison Company to file the same in final form, becoming effective on the date, subsequent to filing, to be shown on the proposed schedule which will be filed with the Commission; and to be in the form and content shown in Exhibit B.

Kathy J. Kolich, Senior Attorney FirstEnergy Service Company 76 South Main Street Akron, Ohio 44308 (330) 384-4580

On behalf of Ohio Edison Company

Effective: November 21, 2007

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Sheet <u>No.</u>	Effective <u>Date</u>
TABLE OF CONTENTS	1	11-21-2007
COMMUNITIES SERVED	3	1-1-2003
STANDARD RULES AND REGULATIONS	4	2-3-2003
General Provisions	4	2-3-2003
Applications and Contracts	4	2-3-2003
Creditworthiness and Deposits	4	2-3-2003
Character of Service	4	2-3-2003
Applicability of Rate Schedules	4	2-3-2003
Choice of Rate Schedules	4	2-3-2003
Billing	. 4	2-3-2003
Service Connections and Line Extensions	4 ·	8-21-2003
Use of Service	4	2-3-2003
Meters, Transformers, and Special Facilities	4	2-3-2003
Customer's Wiring and Equipment	4	2-3-2003
Collection of Past Due Bills and Disconnection of Service	4	2-3-2003
Changing Electric Suppliers	4	2-3-2003
Return to Standard Offer Supply	4	2-3-2003
Certified Supplier Billing and Payment	4	2-3-2003
Customer Aggregation	4	2-3-2003
Emergency Electrical Procedures	4	2-3-2003
ELECTRIC SERVICE SCHEDULES		
Residential Standard Rate	10	11-21-2007
Residential Electric Heating Rider	16	1-1-2003
Residential Optional Electrically Heated Apartment Rate	19	11-21-2007
General Service - Secondary Voltages	21	11-21-2007
General Service - Large Distribution Primary and Transmission Voltages	23	11-21-2007
General Service - Partial Service Rider	24	1-6-2006
General Service - Unmetered Service	25	1-1-2003
General Service - Industrial Development Assistance Rider	26	1-1-2003
General Service - Demand Ratchet Waiver Rider (Temporary)	27	1-1-2003
Traffic Lighting Service	31	1-6-2006
Private Outdoor Lighting Service	32	1-6-2006
Lighting Service - All Night Outdoor Lighting Rate	33	7-17-2006
Street Lighting Service - Provisions of Rate	34	1-1-2003
Street Lighting Service - Company Owned	35	1-6-2006
Street Lighting Service - Non-Company Owned	36	1-6-2006

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Sheet <u>No.</u>	Effective <u>Date</u>
ELECTRIC SERVICE SCHEDULES (Cont'd)		
Cogeneration and Small Power Production	50	1-1-2003
Pole Attachment Tariff	51	1-1-2003
Miscellaneous Charges	53	2-3-2003
Late Payment Charges for Government Accounts	55	1-1-2003
Conservation Service Program	57	1-1-2003
General Service - Polymer Growth Fund Program	76	1-1-2003
Experimental Market Based Tariff	80	1-1-2006
Interconnection Tariff	82	9-6-2002
Retail Transition Cost Recovery of		
Non-bypassable Regulatory Transition Charges	83	5-19-2006
GRANDFATHERED SCHEDULES		
Residential Space Heating Rate	11	11-21-2007
Residential Optional Time-of-Day	12	11-21-2007
Residential Optional Controlled Service Riders	14	4-1-2006
Residential Load Management Rate	17	11-21-2007
Residential Water Heating Service	18	11-21-2007
General Service - Secondary Voltages - Optional Space and Water Heating Rider	22	11-21-2007
General Service - High Use Manufacturing		
- Distribution Primary and Transmission Voltages	28	11-21-2007
General Service - Interruptible Electric Arc Furnace Rate	29	11-21-2007
RIDERS	·	
Transition Rate Credit Program - Residential Service	60	1-6-2006
Shopping Credit Rider	63	1-6-2006
Shopping Credit Adder	64	1-1-2007
Returning Customer Generation Service Charge Rider	65	1-6-2006
General Service - Interruptible Rider -		,
General Service Large and High Use Manufacturing	73	1-1-2003
General Service - Interruptible Rider -		
Metal Melting Load - General Service	74	7-17-2006
General Service - Interruptible Rider -		
Incremental Interruptible Service - General Service	75	7-17-2006
Universal Service Rider	90	12-22-2006
Temporary Rider for EEF	91	1-1-2006
State and Local Tax Rider	92	2-1-2007
EFC Rider	93	1-1-2003
Net Energy Metering Rider	94	4-1-2003
State kWh Tax Self-Assessor Credit Rider	95	7-17-2006
Residential Transmission and Ancillary Charge Rider	96	7-1-2007
Commercial Transmission and Ancillary Charge Rider	97	7-1-2007
Industrial Transmission and Ancillary Charge Rider	98	7-1-2007
Regulatory Transition Charge Offset Rider	99	1-6-2006
Fuel Recovery Mechanism	100	1-6-2006
Green Resource Rider	104	11-21-2007
OLOM TOROMON WASAT		11 21 2007

# **GENERAL SERVICE**

# Partial Service Rider

# Applicability:

This Rider applies to general service customers having on-site non-synchronous generation equipment or synchronous generation equipment that does not qualify for The Net Energy Metering Rider capable of supplying a portion of their power requirements for other than emergency purposes.

#### Service Terms and Conditions:

# Backup Reservation Service and Scheduled Maintenance Service:

Backup Reservation Service and Scheduled Maintenance Service is capacity that the Company reserves to replace capacity normally provided by the customer's on-site generating facilities. The contract shall designate the amount of Specified Backup Capacity and the amount of Specified Scheduled Maintenance Capacity, but in no event will the Specified Backup Capacity or the Specified Scheduled Maintenance Capacity exceed the net capability of the customer's generating facility. The Specified Scheduled Maintenance Capacity shall not exceed the Specified Backup Capacity. Both services shall be considered firm up to the limits specified in the contract for partial service.

The customer shall notify the Company within 24 hours of the occurrence of a partial or full outage affecting the generating facilities when the duration of such outage is expected to extend for a period greater than 3 days, and again within 24 hours after the end of such outage. All verbal notifications will be confirmed in writing.

# **Backup Reservation Service:**

If a customer has not contracted for Supplementary Service, and the recorded demand for such customer exceeds the Specified Backup Capacity in any month, then the Specified Backup Capacity shall be increased to reflect such excess during the remaining term of the contract, but not to exceed the capability of the customer's generation facilities.

If a customer has contracted for Backup Reservation Service in an amount less than the net capability of the customer's generating facilities, and the recorded demand for such customer exceeds the sum of the Specified Supplementary Capacity plus Specified Backup Capacity, then the Specified Backup Capacity shall be increased to reflect such excess during the remaining term of the contract, but not to exceed the capability of the customer's generation facilities.

Effective: January 1, 2003

### Scheduled Maintenance Service:

For customers contracting for Scheduled Maintenance Service, the customer Shall notify the Company 60 days in advance of the beginning of each calendar year of its preferred maintenance schedule for its generating facilities. Upon agreement by the Company, a preliminary maintenance schedule will be established for the customer. The scheduled maintenance may be cancelled by the Company at any time with 5 days' notice prior to the commencement of the scheduled maintenance if conditions on the Company's system warrant such cancellation or at any time prior to the start of each weekly period by the customer with 5 days notice. Scheduled maintenance cancelled pursuant to the conditions described above shall be rescheduled in a manner acceptable to the customer and the Company.

Scheduled Maintenance Service shall be provided for a maximum of two thirty-day periods in any 12-month period. Nothing shall preclude the customer from performing maintenance within the limits of the contract at any time. With the exception of the 5 day notice described above, the maintenance schedule cannot be unilaterally altered but may be modified by mutual agreement.

### Supplementary Service:

Supplementary Service is firm service in addition to Backup and/or Scheduled Maintenance Service. The contract demand for Supplementary Service shall not be greater than the amount of Specified Supplementary Capacity, or less than the minimum in the Otherwise Applicable Rate Schedule.

### **Conditions:**

All provisions in the Otherwise Applicable Rate Schedule related to billing and terms and conditions of service shall apply to service under this Rider. The term "Otherwise Applicable Rate Schedule" as used herein refers to the rate schedule for service which would be applicable to the customer if it were a full service customer, except that if the Otherwise Applicable Rate Schedule does not set forth specific capacity charges then for billing purposes such rate schedule shall be appropriately adjusted, with Commission approval, to make the charges consistent with the provisions hereof.

In applying this Rider, or any part thereof, the Company does not waive the right to disconnect a customer who connects or operates equipment in parallel with the Company's system without approval of the Company or who in any way interferes with or jeopardizes service to other customers, endangers others or adversely affects the Company's operations.

The customer must comply with the General Conditions For Interconnection of customer owned Generation with Ohio Edison System. Service under this Rider is subject to the Rules and Regulations of the Company on file with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

Rate:

# Administrative Charge

\$ 47.70 per month.

# **Backup Capacity Reservation Charge and Daily Backup Power:**

The demand charges for Backup Capacity reserved and for Daily Backup Power taken shall be per the voltage level the customer is served as follows.

Backup	Capacity	Reservation	Charge per	Month
--------	----------	-------------	------------	-------

-----Daily Backup Power------

Voltage Level	Transmission &	Generation
	Distribution	-
Secondary Voltage, per kW	\$3.02	\$1.19
Primary Voltage, per kVA	\$2.73	\$1.15
23 & 34.5 kV, per kVA	\$2.27	\$1.12
69 kV, per kVA	\$1.94	\$1.12
138 kV, per kVA	\$1.34	\$1.10

	Ancillary Services						
Voltage Level	Generation	Scheduling, System Control & Dispatch	Reactive Supply and Voltage Control from Generation Sources	Regulation and Frequency Control	Spinning Reserve	Supple- mental Reserve	
Secondary Voltage, per kW	\$0.83	\$0.003	\$0.003	\$0.004	\$0.003	\$0.007	
Primary Voltage, per kVA	\$0.81	\$0.003	\$0.003	\$0.004	\$0.003	\$0.007	
23 & 34.5 kV, per kVA	\$0.79	\$0.003	\$0.003	\$0.004	\$0.003	\$0.007	
69 kV, per kVA	\$0.77	\$0.003	\$0.003	\$0.004	\$0.003	\$0.007	
138 kV, per kVA	\$0.75	\$0.003	\$0.003	\$0.004	\$0.003	\$0.007	

Effective: January 1, 2003

Daily Backup Power is available for a maximum of fifteen days a year. If Daily Backup Power is used for more than fifteen days in a billing period, the Customer's entire load will be billed as Supplementary Service for that period at the Otherwise Applicable Rate Schedule, with its transition charges and shopping credits. The fifteen days in that billing period would not count toward the annual limitation. Demands created by Daily Backup Power will not be used for demand ratchet calculations in future months.

#### **Scheduled Maintenance Power:**

Power used during periods of agreed upon scheduled maintenance shall be billed on an on-peak daily basis based upon one-half the demand charges for Daily Backup Power.

# Billing Demand for Supplementary Service:

The billing demand for the month for Supplementary Service shall be calculated per the Otherwise Applicable Rate Schedule with the exception that during periods of Daily Backup or Maintenance Power, each half-hour demand during the outage shall be reduced by the lesser of (1) the contract demand for Backup or Maintenance Power, or (2) the amount of Backup or Maintenance Power actually used during that half hour as determined by interval metering of the customer's on-site generation.

On peak periods are from 8:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. local time Monday through Friday, except for the following legal holidays observed during these periods: New Years Day, Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, Presidents' Day Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. These observed legal holidays and all other periods shall be off-peak.

# Billing Demand for Daily Backup Power or Maintenance Power:

The daily billing demand for Backup or Maintenance Power shall be calculated during unavailability of the customer's generation in the on-peak period by finding the greatest positive difference between (1) the customer's actual load taken from the Company and (2) their Billing Demand for Supplementary Service for that month. During months when the customer's generation does not operate in the on-peak period, and the customer is not taking Maintenance Power, Daily Backup Power billing demands shall not be calculated and the customer's entire load shall be billed under Supplementary Service.

# Energy for Backup or Maintenance Power:

The Energy Charge for Backup Power or Maintenance Power shall be \$ 0.02308 per kWh with the exception of when Backup Power is billed at the Otherwise Applicable Rate Schedule for that billing month. Backup or Maintenance energy shall be calculated during outages of the customer's generation in the on-peak period by the summation of the positive differences between (1) the customer's actual load taken from the Company and (2) their Supplemental load for that billing month. The Backup or Maintenance energy charge is cost recovery and will be split between RTC and RSC in proportion to RTC and RSC charges in the Otherwise Applicable Rate Schedule. If the total applicable RTC and RSC charge from the Otherwise Applicable Rate Schedule were to be less that the \$0.02308 per kWh, the excess would be generation charges.

# Generation from Certified Suppliers:

The "Generation" Charges shown for Backup Capacity Reservation, Daily Backup Power and Energy for Backup or Maintenance Power will not apply to the Customer who receives generation services from a Certified Supplier.

#### Applicable Riders:

Rates and charges specified above shall be modified in accordance with provisions of the following applicable riders in the order shown:

Universal Service Rider

Sheet No. 90

Temporary Rider for EEF

Sheet No. 91

#### Maximum Charge:

The maximum billing period charge under this rider shall be limited such that the customer cannot be charged more that if his entire load and energy was billed under the Otherwise Applicable Rate Schedule for that billing month plus the Administrative Charge of this rider.

Effective: January 1, 2003

# Terms of Payment:

Terms of payment shall be the same as stated in the Otherwise Applicable Rate Schedule.

#### Contract

Service under this Rider shall be provided only after a Partial Service Contract is entered between the customer and the Company. The initial term of such contract shall not be less than one year and such term shall be automatically extended for the period specified unless cancelled. Contracts may be canceled by either party at the end of the initial term or extension thereof on not less than sixty days' prior written notice. Each such contract shall identify the Specified Backup Capacity, the Specified Scheduled Maintenance Capacity, the Specified Supplementary Capacity, and the Contract Demand for Supplementary Service.

Nothing in this Rider shall limit the customer and the Company from entering into individualized contracts for partial service, subject to Commission approval. Arrangements that provide for deviations from this tariff shall address the pertinent characteristics of the project that influence the cost of providing said service including the following:

- (1) The expected reliability of the partial service customer's generating service,
- (2) The ability of the partial service customer to accept interruptible service under backup conditions.
- (3) The ability of the partial service customer to reduce backup load requirements during system peak hours, both on a seasonal and daily basis,
- (4) The length of any scheduled outages,
- (5) Whether there is sufficient local facility capacity to serve the load,
- (6) Whether there is sufficient substation capacity to serve the load,
- (7) Whether there is sufficient transmission and generation capacity to serve the load,
- (8) Whether the new or displaced load which is to be served under backup conditions requires a duplication of existing facilities which are currently dedicated to the service,
- (9) Whether short or long-term purchase power is available and at a price which would act as a surrogate for utility-owned capacity,
- (10) Whether the duration of the arrangement allows for long-term utility planning of least cost capacity availability, and
- (11) Whether service is backup for economic decisions to not operate customer-owned equipment or for mechanical availability reasons not to operate customer-owned or supplied equipment.

#### Facilities and Services:

The customer shall install required interconnection facilities as set forth in interconnection policies of the Company.

Where additional transmission and/or distribution facilities are specifically required to provide partial service and where the estimated partial service revenue is insufficient to justify the additional investment required to furnish such service, the Company reserves the right to require the customer to pay for all or any portion of the costs associated with providing the facilities.

The customer shall reimburse the Company for the cost of installing, maintaining and/or continuing to provide additional, modified or special facilities and services which are required solely to provide scheduled maintenance power.

#### **General Provisions:**

If the customer refuses to sign a Partial Service Contract, service to the customer may be denied or terminated.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Sheet <u>No.</u>	Effective <u>Date</u>
TABLE OF CONTENTS	1	<del>11-21-2007</del>
COMMUNITIES SERVED	3	1-1-2003
STANDARD RULES AND REGULATIONS	4	2-3-2003
General Provisions	4	2-3-2003
Applications and Contracts	4	2-3-2003
Creditworthiness and Deposits	4	2-3-2003
Character of Service	4	2-3-2003
Applicability of Rate Schedules	4	2-3-2003
Choice of Rate Schedules	4	2-3-2003
Billing	4	2-3-2003
Service Connections and Line Extensions	4	8-21-2003
Use of Service	. 4	2-3-2003
Meters, Transformers, and Special Facilities Customer's Wiring and Equipment	4	2-3-2003
Customer's wiring and Equipment  Collection of Past Due Bills and Disconnection of Service	4	2-3-2003 2-3-2003
Changing Electric Suppliers	4 4	2-3-2003
Return to Standard Offer Supply	4	2-3-2003
Certified Supplier Billing and Payment	4	2-3-2003
Customer Aggregation	. 4	2-3-2003
Emergency Electrical Procedures	4	2-3-2003
ELECTRIC SERVICE SCHEDULES		
Residential Standard Rate	10	11-21-2007
Residential Electric Heating Rider	16	1-1-2003
Residential Optional Electrically Heated Apartment Rate	19	11-21-2007
General Service - Secondary Voltages	21	11-21-2007
General Service - Large Distribution Primary and Transmission Voltages	23	11-21-2007
General Service - Partial Service Rider	24	1-6-2006
General Service - Unmetered Service	25	1-1-2003
General Service - Industrial Development Assistance Rider	26	1-1-2003
General Service - Demand Ratchet Waiver Rider (Temporary)	27	1-1-2003
Traffic Lighting Service	31	1-6-2006
Private Outdoor Lighting Service	32	1-6-2006
Lighting Service - All Night Outdoor Lighting Rate	33	7-17-2006
Street Lighting Service - Provisions of Rate	34	1-1-2003
Street Lighting Service - Company Owned	35	1-6-2006
Street Lighting Service - Non-Company Owned	36	1-6-2006

Filed pursuant to Orde	r dated <del>Ameunt 15, 2007</del>	in Case No. 46-1112-EL UNG	. before

Effective: November 21, 2007

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

ELECTRIC SERVICE SCHEDULES (Cont'd)  Cogeneration and Small Power Production Pole Attachment Tariff 51 1-1-2	003 003 003
	003 003
Pole Attachment Traiff	003
Miscellaneous Charges 53 2-3-2	003
Late Payment Charges for Government Accounts 55 1-1-2	
Conservation Service Program 57 1-1-2	003
General Service - Polymer Growth Fund Program 76 1-1-2	
Experimental Market Based Tariff 80 1-1-2	
Interconnection Tariff 82 9-6-2	002
Retail Transition Cost Recovery of	
Non-bypassable Regulatory Transition Charges 83 5-19-2	006
GRANDFATHERED SCHEDULES	
Residential Space Heating Rate 11 11-21-2	007
Residential Optional Time-of-Day 12 11-21-2	007
Residential Optional Controlled Service Riders 14 4-1-2	006
Residential Load Management Rate 17 11-21-2	007
Residential Water Heating Service 18 11-21-2	007
General Service - Secondary Voltages - Optional Space and Water Heating Rider 22 11-21-2	007
General Service - High Use Manufacturing	007
- Distribution Primary and Transmission Voltages 28 11-21-2	
General Service - Interruptible Electric Arc Furnace Rate 29 11-21-20	007
RIDERS	
Transition Rate Credit Program - Residential Service 60 1-6-20	006
Shopping Credit Rider 63 1-6-20	
Shopping Credit Adder 64 1-1-20	
Returning Customer Generation Service Charge Rider 65 1-6-20	006
General Service - Interruptible Rider -	
General Service Large and High Use Manufacturing 73 1-1-20 General Service - Interruptible Rider –	003
Metal Melting Load - General Service 74 7-17-20	306
General Service - Interruptible Rider –	300
Incremental Interruptible Service - General Service 75 7-17-20	106
Universal Service Rider 90 12-22-20	
Temporary Rider for EEF 91 1-1-20	
State and Local Tax Rider 92 2-1-20	
EFC Rider 93 1-1-20	
Net Energy Metering Rider 94 4-1-20	
State kWh Tax Self-Assessor Credit Rider 95 7-17-20	
Residential Transmission and Ancillary Charge Rider 96 7-1-20	
Commercial Transmission and Ancillary Charge Rider 97 7-1-20	
Industrial Transmission and Ancillary Charge Rider 98 7-1-20	
Regulatory Transition Charge Offset Rider 99 1-6-20	
Fuel Recovery Mechanism 100 1-6-20	
Green Resource Rider 104 11-21-20	007

Filed pursuant to Order dated August 15, 2007 , in Case No. 46 1112 EL UNC , before

Effective: November 21, 2007

# **GENERAL SERVICE**

# Partial Service Rider

# Applicability:

This Rider applies to general service customers having on-site non-synchronous generation equipment or synchronous generation equipment that does not qualify for The Net Energy Metering Rider, with a combined peak capacity of 100 kW or greater, capable of supplying at least a portion of their power requirements for other than emergency purposes. This Rider does not apply to a customer taking service under either the Company's Optional Standby Service Rider or its Net Energy Metering Rider, provided that the net metering system qualifying under the latter uses as its fuel only either solar, wind, biomass, landfill gas, or hydropower.

# **Service Terms and Conditions:**

A Full Service customer may select either the fixed pricing or the market-based pricing option set forth below. If the customer makes no such selection, the fixed pricing option shall be applied. For purposes of this Rider, a Full Service customer is one that receives all retail electric services from the Company. The customer's selection shall be indicated in the Partial Service Contract.

All Generation related charges set forth in this schedule, either under the fixed price or market based pricing option, shall be in effect until January 1, 2009, on which date such charges shall expire and shall be replaced with charges pursuant to the Company's applicable Standard Service Offer (or its equivalent) in effect at that time for generation service. All other applicable charges, including any applicable transition and rate stabilization charges shall apply.

# FIXED PRICING OPTION

# Backup Reservation Service and Scheduled Maintenance Service:

Backup Reservation Service and Scheduled Maintenance Service is capacity that the Company reserves, <u>pursuant to a contract between the customer and the Company</u>, to replace capacity normally provided by the customer's on-site generating facilities. The contract shall designate the amount of and includes Specified Backup Capacity and the amount of Specified Scheduled Maintenance Capacity, but as designated in said contract. In no event will the Specified Backup Capacity or the Specified Scheduled Maintenance Capacity exceed the net capability of the customer's generating facility. The Specified Scheduled Maintenance Capacity shall not exceed the Specified Backup Capacity. Both services shall be considered firm up to the limits specified in the contract for partial service.

The customer shall notify the Company within 24 hours of the occurrence of a partial or full outage affecting the generating facilities when the duration of such outage is expected to extend for a period greater than 3 days,

Filed pursuant to Order dated July 19, 2000 , in Case No. 99 1212 BL ETP before The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio Issued by: H. Peter Burg Anthony J. Alexander, President

Effective: Juniory 1, 2003

and again within 24 hours after the end of such outage. All verbal notifications will be confirmed in writing within 24 hours.

# **Backup Reservation Service:**

If a customer has not contracted for Supplementary Service (as that term is defined below), and the recorded demand for such customer exceeds the Specified Backup Capacity in any month, then the Specified Backup Capacity shall be increased to reflect such excess during the remaining term of the contract, but shall not to exceed the capability of the customer's generation facilities.

If a customer has contracted for Backup Reservation Service in an amount less than the net capability of the customer's generating facilities; and the recorded demand for such customer exceeds the sum of the Specified Supplementary Capacity plus and Specified Backup Capacity, then the Specified Backup Capacity shall be increased to reflect such excess during the remaining term of the contract, but shall not to exceed the capability of the customer's generation facilities.

Filed pursuant to Order dated July 19, 2000 , in Case No. 39 1213 EL ETP , before
The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio

Effective: January 1, 2003

#### Scheduled Maintenance Service:

For customers contracting for Scheduled Maintenance Service, the customer Shall shall notify the Company 60 days in advance of the beginning later than November 1 of each calendar year of its preferred upcoming annual maintenance schedule for its generating facilities. Upon agreement by the Company, a preliminary maintenance schedule will be established for the customer. The scheduled maintenance may be cancelled by the Company at any time with 5 days' notice prior to the commencement of the scheduled maintenance if conditions on the Company's system warrant such cancellation or by the customer at any time prior to the start of each weekly period by the customer with 5 days notice. Scheduled maintenance cancelled pursuant to the conditions described above shall be rescheduled in a manner mutually acceptable to the customer and the Company.

Scheduled Maintenance Service shall be provided for a maximum of two thirty-day periods in any 12-month period. Nothing shall preclude the customer from performing maintenance within the limits of the contract at any time. With the exception of the 5 day notice described above, the maintenance Except as otherwise provided in this schedule, the Scheduled Maintenance Schedule cannot be unilaterally altered but may be modified by mutual agreement.

# Supplementary Service:

Supplementary Service is firm service in addition to Backup and/or Scheduled Maintenance Service. The contract demand for Supplementary Service shall not be greater than the amount of Specified Supplementary Capacity, or less than the minimum in the Otherwise Applicable Rate Schedule.

#### Conditions:

All provisions in the Otherwise Applicable Rate Schedule related to billing and terms and conditions of service shall apply to service under this Rider. The term "Otherwise Applicable Rate Schedule" as used herein refers to the rate schedule for service which that would be applicable to the customer if itthis Partial Service Rider were a full service customernot applicable, except that if the Otherwise Applicable Rate Schedule does not set forth specific capacity charges, then for billing purposes such rate schedule shall be appropriately adjusted, with Commission approval, to make the charges consistent with the provisions hereof:

In applying of this Rider, or any part thereof, the Company does not waive the right to disconnect a customer who connects or operates equipment in parallel with the Company's system without approval of the Company or who in any way interferes with or jeopardizes service to other customers, endangers others or adversely affects the Company's operations.

schedule. All provisions in the Otherwise Applicable Rate Schedule related to billing and terms and conditions of service shall apply to service under this Rider.

Cil.d	pursuant	+- O-	d d-	1		3/3/5/0
FILCO	оитѕиати	ю сп	aer aa	IBA +iiii	<del></del>	

Effective: January 1, 2003

The customer must comply with the General Conditions For Interconnection of customer owned Generation with Ohio Edison-System. Service under this Rider is subject to the Rules and Regulations of the Company on file with the Public Utilities Commission of Obio-

Filed pursuant to Order dated July 19, 2000\_ \_\_\_, in Case No. 49-1212 EL ETP\_ \_\_\_, before The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio Effective: Jonnary 1, 2003

# Rate:

# Administrative Charge

\$ 47.70 per month.

# Backup Capacity Reservation Charge and Daily Backup Power:

The demand charges for Backup Capacity reserved and for Daily Backup Power taken shall be per the voltage level the customer is served as follows.

Backup	Capacity I	Reservation	Charge	per Month

Voltage Level	Voltage Level Transmission &	
	Distribution	
Secondary Voltage, per kW	\$3.02	\$1.19
Primary Voltage, per kVA	\$2.73	\$1.15
23 & 34.5 kV, per kVA	\$2.27	\$1.12
69 kV, per kVA	\$1.94	\$1.12
138 kV, per kVA	\$1.34	\$1.10

-------Daily Backup Power------------Ancillary Services------Reactive Supply and Voltage Scheduling, Control Regulation from Supple-System and Control & Generation Frequency Spinning mental Voltage Level Reserve Generation Sources Control Reserve Dispatch \$0.007 Secondary Voltage, per kW \$0.83 \$0.003 \$0.004 \$0.003 \$0.003 \$0.003 \$0.004 \$0.003 \$0.007 Primary Voltage, per kVA \$0.81 \$0.003 \$0.003 \$0.007 23 & 34.5 kV, per kVA \$0.79 \$0.003 \$0.003 \$0.004 69 kV, per kVA \$0.77 \$0.003 \$0.003 \$0.004 \$0.003 \$0.007 \$0.007 138 kV, per kVA \$0.75 \$0.003 \$0.003 \$0.004 \$0.003

Filed pursuant to Order dated July 19, 2000 , in Case No. 99 1212 FL ETF , before

The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio

Issued by: H. Peter BurnAnthony J. Alexander, President

Effective: January 1, 2003

Daily Backup Power is available for a maximum of fifteen days a year. If Daily Backup Power is used for more than fifteen days in a billing period, the Customer's entire load will be billed as Supplementary Service for that period at the Otherwise Applicable Rate Schedule, with its transition charges and shopping credits. The fifteen days in that billing period would not count toward the annual limitation. Demands created by Daily Backup Power will not be used for demand ratchet calculations in future months.

#### Scheduled Maintenance Power:

Power used during periods of agreed upon scheduled maintenance shall be billed on an on-peak daily basis based upon one-half the demand charges for Daily Backup Power.

# **Billing Demand for Supplementary Service:**

The billing demand for the month for Supplementary Service shall be calculated per the Otherwise Applicable Rate Schedule with the exception that during periods of Daily Backup or Maintenance Power, each half-hour demand during the outage shall be reduced by the lesser of (1) the contract demand for Backup or Maintenance Power, or (2) the amount of Backup or Maintenance Power actually used during that half hour as determined by interval metering of the customer's on-site generation.

On peak periods are from 8:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. local time Monday through Friday, except for the following legal holidays observed during these periods: New Years Day, Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, Presidents' Day Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. These observed legal holidays and all other periods shall be off-peak.

#### Billing Demand for Daily Backup Power or Maintenance Power:

The daily billing demand for Backup or Maintenance Power shall be calculated during unavailability of the customer's generation in the on-peak period by finding the greatest positive difference between (1) the customer's actual load taken from the Company and (2) their Billing Demand for Supplementary Service for that month. During months when the customer's generation does not operate in the on-peak period, and the customer is not taking Maintenance Power, Daily Backup Power billing demands shall not be calculated and the customer's entire load shall be billed under Supplementary Service.

# Energy for Backup or Maintenance Power:

The Energy Charge for Backup Power or Maintenance Power shall be \$ 0.02308 per kWh with the exception of when Backup Power is billed at the Otherwise Applicable Rate Schedule for that billing month. Backup or Maintenance energy shall be calculated during outages of the customer's generation in the on-peak period by the summation of the positive differences between (1) the customer's actual load taken from the Company and (2) their Supplemental load for that billing month. The Backup or Maintenance energy charge is includes

Filed pursuant to Order dated July 19, 2000	, in Case No. 39 1212 EL ETV, before		
The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio			
Issued by: H-Peter Burn Anthony J. Alexander, President	Effective: January 1, 2003		

transition cost recovery and will be split between RTC and RSC in proportion to RTC and RSC charges in the Otherwise Applicable Rate Schedule. If the total applicable RTC and RSC charge from the Otherwise Applicable Rate Schedule were to be less that than the \$0.02308 per kWh, the excess would be generation charges. Generation from Certified Suppliers: The "Generation" Charges shown for Backup Capacity Reservation, Daily Backup Power and Energy for Backup or Maintenance Power will not apply to the Customer who receives generation services from a Certified Supplier. MARKET BASED PRICING OPTION The generation charges specified in this Rider under the Fixed Pricing Option, shall not apply to the Customer who either receives generation services from a Certified Retail Electric Service ("CRES") Provider or elects to take partial service under the Market Based Generation Option set forth below. All other applicable charges, including any applicable transition and rate stabilization charges shall apply. Market Based Energy Charge: The Market Based Energy Charge (MBEC) is equal to bourly Back-Up energy usage applied to the bourly energy price quotes made publicly available by Midwest ISO, as defined in the Hourly Market Based Price section below. The Market Based Energy Charge is calculated as follows:  $MBEC = \sum (kWb, x, MBP_i)$ Where: Customer's actual Back-Up kilowatt-hour usage in hour, The applicable Hourly Market Based Price as defined in the Hourly Market Based Price MBP. section below, at hour An hour in the billing period during which Back-Up energy was supplied Total number of hours in the billing period during which Back-Up energy was supplied Hourly Market Based Price: The Hourly Market Based Price will be equal to the following:  $MBP_t = (LMP_t \times (1 + LAF))$ Where: Loss adjustment factor LAF 0.0% for service voltages of 69 kV or greater

Filed pursuant to Order dated July 19, 2000	, in Case No. <del>99-1212 EL ETP</del>	before		
The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio				
Legiad by M. Batar Burn Anthony & Alaxandar President	Effective: Inventor: 1 20	303.2		

Akron, Ohio		P.U.C.O. No 11	Page 8 of 11
**************************************	0.1%	for service voltages of 23 k	V or greater up to (not including) 69 kV
	•	for service voltages of 2.4 l for service voltages less the	kV or greater up to (not including) 23 kV in 2.4 kV
from time to til	t the Commercial Pricing to me by the Midwest ISO, In	vode labeled "FESR", as th	MP" as defined and specified by the is node may be changed or superseded in the LMP reported by the Midwest st ISO in monthly billings.
***************************************	An hour in the billing p	eriod during which Back-U	p energy was supplied
	•	ustomer's failure to receive te Internet for access to Mid	and act upon market based quotes. The
•	erwise recovered by the Co		tion service while this Rider is in effect passed through to the customer, upon
OTHER TERMS AND	CONDITIONS:		
connects or operate	es equipment in parallel wi	th the Company's system w	the right to disconnect a customer who ithout approval of the Company or endangers others or adversely affects
the Company's ope	erations.		
with Ohio Edison		Rider is subject to the Rule	tion of customer owned Generation es and Regulations of the Company on
Applicable Riders:		***************************************	
Rates and charges	specified above shall be m	odified in accordance with	provisions of the following applicable
riders in the order	shown and shall be modifie	ed in accordance with The (	Ohio Commercial Activity Tax rate as
established in Sect	ion 5751.02 of the Ohio Re	evised Code.:	
U	niversal Service Rider	Sheet No. 90	
T	emporary Rider for EEF	Sheet No. 91	
S	tate and Local Tax Rider	Sheet No. 92	
<u>N</u>	et Energy Metering Rider	Sheet No. 94	
<u>A</u>	ny other Applicable rider a	pproved by the Public Utili	ties Commission of
<u>0</u>	<u>hìo</u>	-	
Maximum Charge:		÷	

Filed pursuant to Order dated July 19, 2000 \_\_, in Case No. 99 1212 EL ETP\_ before The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio \_Issued by H. Peter Burg Anthony J. Alexander, President Effective: January 1, 2003

The maximum billing period charge under this rider shall be limited such that the customer cannot be charged more that for electric service provided by the Company than if his entire load and energy consumed, including self-generation power, was billed under the Otherwise Applicable Rate Schedule for that billing month plus the Administrative Charge of this rider.

# Terms of Payment:

Terms of payment shall be the same as stated in the Otherwise Applicable Rate Schedule.

#### Contract

Service under this Rider shall be provided only after a Partial Service Contract is entered between the customer and the Company. The initial term of such contract shall not be less than one year and such term shall be automatically extended for the period specified unless cancelled. Contracts may be cancelled by either party at the end of the initial term or extension thereof on not less than sixty days' prior written notice. Each such contract shall identify the Specified Backup Capacity, the Specified Scheduled Maintenance Capacity, the Specified Supplementary Capacity, and the Contract Demand for Supplementary Service. If the customer takes partial service from the Company but fails to execute a Partial Service Contract, the customer shall be charged for Backup Capacity Reservation as set forth herein. The Specified Backup Capacity applicable to such customer shall be the peak capacity of the customer's generation source as determined by the interconnection application or as estimated by the Company, as necessary.

The customer shall be subject to all provisions of this Rider, as applicable

Nothing in this Rider shall limit the customer and the Company from entering into individualized contracts for partial service, subject to Commission approval. Arrangements that provide for deviations from this tariff shall address the pertinent characteristics of the project that influence the cost of providing said service including the following:

- (1) The expected reliability of the partial service oustomer's generating service.
- (2) The ability of the partial service customer to accept interruptible service under backup conditions.
- (3) The ability of the partial service customer to reduce backup load requirements during system peak hours, both on a seasonal and daily basis,
- The length of any scheduled outages,
- (5) Whether there is sufficient local facility capacity to serve the load,
- (6) Whether there is sufficient substation capacity to serve the load,
- (7) Whether there is sufficient transmission and generation capacity to serve the load.
- (8) Whether the new or displaced load which is to be served under backup conditions requires a duplication of existing facilities which are currently dedicated to the service.
- (9) Whether short or long term purchase power is available and at a price which would art as a surrogate for utility owned enpacity;

,			
Filed pursuant to Order dated July 19, 2000			
The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio			
Issued by H. Peter Bure Anthony J. Alexander, President	Effective: January 1, 2003		

(10)	Whether the duration of the	<del>urangement allows</del>	for long te	rm utility plani	ning of least e	<del>est capacity</del>
	availability, and					

	·		
Filed pursuant to Order dated July 19, 2000	, in Case No. 49 1212 EL ETP before		
The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio			
Issued by H. Peter Burg Anthony J. Alexander, President	Effective: January 1, 2003		

<sup>(11)</sup> Whether service is backup for economic decisions to not operate customer owned equipment or for mechanical availability reasons not to operate customer-owned or supplied equipment.

# Facilities and ServicesMetering:

The customer shall install required interconnection facilities as set forth in interconnection policies of the Company.

Where additional transmission and/or distribution facilities are specifically required to provide partial service and where the estimated partial service revenue is insufficient to justify the additional investment required to furnish such service, the Company reserves the right to require the customer to pay for all or any portion of the costs associated with providing the facilities.

The customer shall reimburse the Company for the cost of installing, maintaining and/or continuing to provide additional, modified or special facilities and services which are required solely to provide scheduled maintenance power.

#### **Ceneral Provisions:**

If the customer refuses to sign a PartialScheduled Maintenance Service Contract, service to the customer may be denied or terminated.

All sources of energy shall be metered. The customer is responsible for providing a working dedicated telephone line for metering purposes at each metering point and shall pay the Company any and all expenses involved in providing interval metering equipment. Maintenance of the meterts) will be the responsibility of the Company, which will own the meter(s). The Customer's monthly electric bill shall be calculated by using measurements obtained from these meters.

PUCO Order: The existing Partial Service Rider was approved under Case Numbers 99-1212-EL-ETP and 03-2144-EL-ATA for TE, OE and CEI. Proposed changes are being filed pursuant to the Commission's March 28, 2007 Order, in Docket No. 05-1500-EL-COI, and the changes to the Ohio Administrative Code as proposed in said Order and as approved by JCAR on October 22, 2007. The major proposed changes are summarized below:

- a. Applicability: For administrative reasons, the Company is proposing an exemption from this Rider/Schedule/Rate for customers with self-generation capacity of no greater than 100 kW. Additional exemptions are included for customers taking service under the proposed Optional Standby Service Rider or the Net Energy Metering Rider as long as the net metering system under the latter is fueled by renewable fuel sources. The exclusion of fossil fueled net metering systems was necessary because of the removal of the size limitation from the definition of net metering system pursuant to the Commission's Order.
- b. Default Application: Rather than retain the current remedy of allowing disconnection of service when a customer takes partial service without executing a partial service contract as required by this Rider, a provision is proposed to apply capacity reservation charges to any customer that takes such service under such conditions. This provides a more practical recourse for the Company and the customer.
- c. Market Based Option: In order to comply with the Commission's Order, a proposed market-based option is being added. The design of this option is virtually identical to the market-based pricing methodology included in the Company's existing Experimental Market Based Tariff, the extension of which was recently approved by the Commission.
- d. Generation Pricing: Customers selecting the market-based pricing option would not be charged generation charges, including fuel charges specified in the tariff under the fixed price option. They would be responsible for other energy charges such as RTC, RSC and any other non-generation charges of the otherwise applicable tariff as specified in the fixed pricing option.
- e. Generation Pricing: Proposed language has been added to replace specified market based energy pricing with pricing arising from the Company's Standard Service Offer beginning January 1, 2009.
- f. Taxes: Proposed language has been added to allow the adjustment of prices for the Commercial Activity Tax, which the Company is legally obligated to collect.
- g. Special Contracts: The option for the Company to enter into individualized agreements is being eliminated in this proposal. It is the Company's intention to apply pricing for partial service in accordance with approved tariffs. The removal of this option is also consistent with the Commission's position that special arrangements with individual customers should be avoided.
- h. Metering: In order to effectively apply the partial service Rider and have the billing units needed to accurately calculate the customer's bill, a provision was added that requires customers to provide a dedicated telephone line and pay the Company the cost to provide interval metering for each energy source and/or each metering point.